
lINI'U;U NATIONS

General_Assembly
FORTY· "'OlJ KTtI S":SS ION

Official Records

SIX'lH COMMITTEE
21st meeting

held on
Wednesday, 18 October 1~89

at 10 a.m.
New York

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 21st MEETING

CCN'l'ENTS

EXPH~SSION Of SYMPATHY IN CONNE('TION WITH THE RECENT EARTHQUAKE IN NORTHERN
CALIWNNIA

AGENDA IT~M 1391 MEASURES TO PREVENT INTERNATIONAL TERRORISM WHICH ENDANGERS OR
TAKES INNOCENT HUMAN LIVES OR JEOPARDIZES FUNDAMENTAL FREEDOMS AND STUDY OF THE
UNDERLYING CAUSES OF THOSE FORMS OF TERRORISM AND ACTS OF VIOL.ENCE WHICH LIE IN
MISERY, FRUSTRATION, GRIEVANCE AND DESPAIR ~D WHICH CAU~E SO~E PEOPLE TO SACRIFICE
HUMAN LIVES, INCLUDING ;HEIR OWN, IN AN ATTEMPT TO EFFECT RADICAL CHANGES
(c. QJlt ~ nj,l,~Y)

(8) REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (~.tinYJ~)

(b) CONVENING, UNDER THE AusprCES OF THE UNITED NATIONS, OF A~ INTERNATIONAL
CONFERENCE TO DEFINE TERRORISM AND TO DIFFERENTIATE IT FROM THE' STRUGGLE
OF PEOPLES FOR NATIONAL LIBERAT10N (~t~)

Thl' r~rnnll' ,ulllrrlln nl!R','lInl1
('urrr..I"In' \huuldl'C ,rill un,iI'l Ih,' \IIlI1I1IUI'\' III " 1t1~1Il1lr1 ullhe ,lrlrllMtlon ,""nrrrM\!

..'IIhlll "m' "','rk ,,' ,hI' ,/"", "'I'''''''CII/I'''' hllh,' ('hlrlullhc (lI"lirlMI Rr..otd, blltlllll Sr,'luln, R'Mlm 1)(.'2·750,
2 \II1II,'d NUllnn\ "111/11, ,lIld IIlnltlMlrIIl",11Il1I ""11) ullhr ",,'ON

('OIIl','lInl1\ Will lx' I"u..d 1111"1 IIIl' "l1dullh,' "',,".n, III il "'ll;IIUI~ rll r11Il"OOUIII lilt rurh l'llmmIllCC.

89 56118 16548 (R)

Dlstr. GENERAL
A/C.&/44/SR.21
23 October 1989

ORIGINALI ENGLISH
_____--L...- _

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC.6/44/SR.21
English
Page 2

The meeting was called to order at 10.05 a.m.

EXPRESSION OF SYMPATHY IN CONNECTION WITH THE RECENT EARTHQUAKE IN NORTHERN
CALIFORNIA

1. The CHAIRMAN, spea~ing on behalf of the Committee, expressed sympathy in
connection with the recent earthquake in northern California.

AGENDA ITEM 139: MEASURES TO PREVENT INTERNATIONAL TERRORISM WHICH ENDANGERS OR
TAKES INNOCENT HUMAN LIVES OR JEOPARDIZES FUNDAMENTAL FREEDOMS AND STUDY OF THE
UNDERLYING CAUSES OF THOSE FORMS OF TERRORISM AND ACTS OF VIOLENCE WHICH LIE IN
MISERY, FRUSTRATION, GRIEVANCE AND DESPAIR AND WHICH CAUSE SOME PEOPLE TO SACRIFICE
HUMAN LIVES, INCLUDING THEIR OWN, IN AN ATTEMPT TO EFFECT RADICAL CHANGES
(continued)

(a) REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued)

(b) CONVENING, UNDER THE AUSPICES OF THE UNITED NATIONS, OF AN INTERNATIONAL
CONFERENCE TO DEFINE TERRORISM AND TO DIFFERENTIATE IT FROM THE STRUGGLE OF
PEOPLES FOR NATIONAL LIBERATION (continued) (A/44/398, A/44/456 and Add.l,
A/44/578i A/C.6/44/L.2)

2. Mr. DROUSHIOTIS (Cyprus) said that his country was a party to the Convention
on the Prevention and Punishment of Crimes against Internationally Protected
Persons, including Diplomatic Agents, the Convention on Offences and Certain Other
Acts Committed on Board Aircraft, the Convention for the Suppression of Unlawful
Seizure of Aircraft and the Convention for the Suppression of Unlawful Acts against
the Safety of Civil Aviation. At present, Cyprus was in the process of ratifying
the International Convention against the Taking of Hostages, and was giving active
consideration to signing and ratifying the Protocol for the Suppression of Unlawful
Acts of Violence at Airports Serving International Civil Aviation. He noted with
satisfaction that the Security Council, the International Civil Aviation
Organization (ICAO), the International Maritime Organization (IMO) and other
organizations such as the Council of Europe, the Conference on Security a-a
Co-operation in Europe (CSCE) and the Non-Aligned Movement had taken actions which
clearly reflected the resolve of the international community to combat and
eliminate terrorism.

3. The total eradication of terrorism could only be achieved when its underlying
causes were removed. The principal organs of the United Nations, and in particular
the Security Council, must take action to bring about just solutions to the
situations with which they were seized. Parallel to those efforts, the
international community must continue to combat every manifestation of
international terrorism, inclUding its growing connection with drug traff~~king.

Cyprus supported international co-operation for the purpose of preventing and
combating terrorist actions. consistent with the norms of international law and
with the principles and provisions of the United Nations Charter.

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



•
A/C.6/44/SR.21
English
Page 3

(Mr, Prou.blotl•. CYQruI)

4. The Heads of &tate and Government of Non-Aligned Countries, at their recent
confere~ce at Belgrade, had condemned all acts of terrorism and reiterated their
support for 1eneral Assembly resolutions 40/61 and 42/159. In that context, they
had expressed their support for an international conference under the auspices of
the United Nations to define terrorism. The definition of terrorism would be a
worthy achieveme~t in the international communityl. effortl to prevent and combat
that scourge, but there was clearly a need to distinguish terrorism from the
legitimate struggle of peoples for national liberation and their right to
.elf-determinMtion. If the complex task of formulatinq .uch a definition could be
accomplished in a co~structive manner and in the traditional spirit of the
Sixth Committee, that would benefit the world community and enhance the
co-operation of States in preventing and combating terrorism.

5. Mr, MAKAREYICH (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic) said that his delegation
shared the in~ernational community's deep concern at the continuing acts of
international terrorism, a phenomenon which his country unconditionally condemned.
An effective struggle against international terrorism was predicated upon the
active co-operati~n of all States conducted in a constructive spirit on the bas!.s
of respect for the generally accepted principles and norms of international law and
of compliance with t~e Charter of the United Nations. His country was a party to
all the m~jor universal international instruments aimed at preventing international
terrorism, and considered it essential that States which had not yet done so should
accede to those instruments and abide strictly by their provisions. The
elaboration of new intern~tional ag:eements in the field was also of the greatest
impo~tancel in that connection, he said that the Ukrainian SSR had signed the 1988
Convention for the Suppression of Unlawful Acts against the Safety of Maritime
Navigation and the Protocol thereto and wus currently considering their
ratification. Information on measures to prevent terrorism taken at the national
level was t~ bti found in his Government's reply appeari"9 in the report of the
Secretary-General (A/44/455).

6. His del~9ation called for the immediate release of all hostages and kidnapped
persons wherever and by whomever they might be held, and welcomed Security CouncIl
resolution 638/89 on that issue. While constantly bearing in mind the need to
combat international terrorism, the international community should not forget that
a general improvement of the international situation and strict observance of the
right ~r peoples to independent development would contribute decisively to the
eradication of that scourge.

7. The United Nations had made an important contribution to the struggle against
international terrorism. General Assembly resolutions 40161 and 42/159 could serve
as the basis for constructive co-operation among StatGp. in that field, and work on
expanoing ~nd strengthening that ~asis should be continued, His delegation
endorsed the proposals made during the discussion in the Committee, in partiCUlar,
those for the setting up of a fact-finding body within the United Nations, the
establishment of a Unit.ed Nations centre on problems relating to terrorism which 
together with the propoYed ICAO centre and possibly a similar IMO centre - would
eventually provide an internation~l mechanism for co-operation and co-ordination in

I • ...

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.6/44/SR.21
English
Page 4

(Hr. Makar.yigb, Ukrainian SSR)

that field, and the elaboration by the International Law Commission of a new
international inltrument on the phy.ical protection ot chemical and bacteriological
material. In conclulion, he welcomed the work on the marking of explosive. for
detectability undertaken by ICAO at the initiative of C.echoslovakia and the United
Kingdom.

8. Mr. ALEXANDRQV (Bulgaria) said that the struggle against international
terrorism could be far more successful if all States directed their efforts against
its specific manifestations and towards the elimination of its social and political
roots. The basic requirement for th~ complete eradication of international
terrorism was tho removal of its causes and the improvement of the international
climate. Co-operation among States in their struggle against international
terrorism must be based on the general principle. and norms of contemporary
international law, in full compliance with the Charter of the United Nations. The
struggle of the national liberation movements in defence of the inalienable right
of people. to s.lf-determination and independence could not be treated a. terrorist
activity.

9. A good basis for strengthening international co-operation was commitment to
existing multilateral conventions r.lating to int~rnational terrorism. In 1988,
Bulgaria had acceded to the International Convention against the Taking of
Hostages. On 27 July 1989, the National Assembly had adopted a decree on the
accession of Bulgaria to the Tokyo Convention on Offences and Certain Other Acts
Committed on Board Aircraft. Secause of time limitations, that fact had not been
reflected in document A/44/~56. Thus, being a party to all basic international
treaties concerning international terrorism, inclUding the instruments adopted by
ICAO and INO, his country was convinced that commitment to those treaties by States
that were not yet parties to them would contribute significantly to the removal of
obstacles to effective international co-operation.

10. Co-operation among States could also be enhanced by appropriate steps to
implement the provisions of th~ international treaties on terrorism in national
legislation. Bulgaria had introduced the necessary amendments to its legislation,
and had also entered into a number of bilateral treaties which created effective
mechanisms for the punishment or extradition of persons who had committed terrorist
acts.

11. New forms of co-operation should be sought in the struggle against
international terrorism. There were good opportunities for thfJ establishment of a
solid legal basis in that field, and the United Nations could and should play a
very important role in that respect. It would be useful to ccnsider the
establishment of appropriate organizational mechanisms in the framework of the
United Nations which could be entrusted with fact-finding, gathering and analysis
of information, consultative assistance and co-ordination in the struggle against
international terrorism. His Government's positi~n on that issue was reflected in
the joint letter flom the Permanent Representatives of six Eastern European
countries, addressed to the Secretary-General (A/C.6/44/4).

I • ••
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.fi/44/SR.21
Englh."l
Page 5

(Mr. Alexandroy. Bulgaria)

12. His Government had on many occasions demonstrated in practice its readiness to
co-operate with other States in the stru9g1e against internation~l terrorism. One
of the most recent examples was the conference of the Balkan Stete. in Belgrade,
mentioned recently by the representative of Yugoslavia. Its active stance in the
consideration of the item in the United Nations was ano~her manifestation of that
readiness.

13. Mr. BEN ABPALLAH (Tunisia), stressing the complexity of the item on terrorism,
said that General Assembly resolutions 40/fi1 and 42/15Q, the relevant Security
Council resolutlonl', the declaration of the recen~ summit m.eting of non-aligned
countrie~ at S~lgrade and the conventions recently adopted by ICAO and IMO would
all help strengt.hen the international community's efforts to eliminate
international terrorism. His delegation supported all those efforts, and
consider"d that more countries shoull adhere to the vari~us instruments he had
mentionec.'.

14. He noted with concern that some countries continued to defy the decisions of
the Organization, and even practiced terrorism themselves. Tunisia had on two
occasions been a victim of the most pernicious form of terrorism, And wished to
reiterate its strong condemnation of such actions, wheth~r perpetrated by
individuals, St~~as, or groups of States. His Government was prepared to
co-operate in to implementing practical measures to combat terrorism.

15. The search for practical solutions to the problem of terrorism should
concentrate on prevention. Coercion could produce only limited results, ana
selective measures dealing with certain aspects of terrorism would provide only
partial solutions, A more comprehensive approach must be taken for terrorism
should be viewed as a symptom which was often due to the perpetuati~n of situations
that were unjust and into~erable from the standpoint of international law, and the
struggle against it could therefore not succeed without an analysis of its
underlying causes.

16. It was, accordingly, essential to give due considerati~n to the legitima~e

~truggle of national liberation movements against colonialism and other forms of
oppression and denial of the right of peoples to self-determination. Any effort
which, under the guise of comb~tive terroris~, sought to d.priv~ p~ople8 of their
right to selt-determination and impede the struggle of national liber~tion

movements could not be considered valid. It was of the utm08~ importance that the
national liberation movements that had been recognized by the United Nations should
play a part in the struggle against terrorism. Hence the convening, under the
auspices of the United Nations, of an international conference to define terrorism
and to differentiate it from the struggle of peoples for national liberation was
worthy of careful consideration, The exerci.e of def.ining international terrorism,
although difficult, could throw useful light on the question and make the struggle
against tet~orism more effective. The problem of terrorism was above all a
political one, and it was at the political level that it must be addressed. A
basic agreement, reached by consensus, could facilitate the adoption of more
effective instruments and measures to combat terrorism.

1 •••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.6/44/SR.21
EnCjJJ ish
Paqe I)

(Mr. Btn Abdallah, Tunisia)

17. It was in tht int.r~st of all to bt mort dispassionatt in debatinq the
question and to consider carefUlly any initiative that miCjJht CjJive new impetus to
the process, which had been so protracted, ~imed at endinCjJ the plaque of
terrorism, The realistic and conciliatory spirit. which had prevailed durinq the
p~st two sessions of the Genera] Assembly at which the question of international
terrorism had been discusse~ would help the Committ•• to decide on concrete
measures that could be applied by all.

18. Mr, ROSE6STOCK (United States of America) said that his d(le~ation was takinq
the floor in the debate on terrorism with a traqic bond in CO", 'C',r. with the Unite':!
Nations - the 10S8 to terrorism of one of their. own, United N~~ion8 peace-keeper
William Richard Hiqgins, It was sad to think that the world was still plagued by
terrorism, which had first been placed in the United Nations aCjJenda nearly two
dec6des before. Clearly, the problem concerntd everyone, as terrorists did not
cvnfine their actions to a single country or reqion. Terrorism was in all respects
a global phenomenon, and it required a CjJlobal response. The international
community had already responded in a number of ways, DS evidenced by the pertinftnt
resolutions of the General Assembly and the Security Council, as well as the
conventions elaborated by ICAO and IMO. The Security Council's action on plastic
explosives and the follow-up.by IeAO offered a superb example of co-operation
within the United N~tions system. Aa a nation which had lost 10 many of its most
promising young people in the tragic er-plosion of the Pan American aircraft in
December 1988, his delegation applauded that development, and was especially
appreciative of the role played throughout by Czechoslovakia and, the United
Kingdom. The international consensus rejectinq terrorism was clear~y deepening and
broadening. Like the representative of Tunisia, he welcomed the increasin~ly

c~nstructive tone of the debate on the item in the Sixth Committee.

19. More needed to be done, however. Member States must continue to make c1ear,
in both their actions and their statements, that they would never allow terrorism
to become a tool for pursuing political objectives or effecting changes in
relations among States. He urged them to use the deliberations in the Sixth
Committee to form a consensus to m~ke the strongest possible statement against
terrorism. He also urged them to agree that it was not necessary for the Committee
to address the use of force by States in order to deal with the terrorism item.
The rules conc~rning such use of force were clear. They were set out in Article 2,
paragraph 4, of the Charter of the United Nations, and nothing could be a~ded to
the meaning of that paragcaph by seeking to apply the term "terrorism" to the use
of force by States. The rules were also embodied in such instruments as the
Declaration on Principles of International Law concerning Friendly Relations and
Co-operation among States in ac~ordance with the Charter of the United Nations.
Debating at the current stage, the long-standing issue of the use of force by
States would not help to combat terrorism. Rather, it would dilute the Committea's
efforts and change th~ whole focus of its deliberations. It was clear from the
very title of the item that it concerned acts of violence by individuals or groups,
informal or otherwise, which affecte~ nationals of another State.

I •••
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.&/44/SB.21
English
Page 7

(Mr. Rosenstock, United States)

20. By the same token, it was neither necessary nor helpful to debate the issue of
national liberation movements. His delegation reiterated its opposition to
terror~sm and its support for the struggle for self-determination, which were in no
way contradictory. Indeed, it was terrorism, with its lack of regard for human
life, ~hich was inconsistent with the basic principles and tenets of
self-determination. He urged members to reiterate their common conviction that
terrorism was so heinous that its use could never be tolerated or justified in any
struggle. Certainly, they could all stand firmly together against, and condemn in
the strongest way possible, such acts as aircraft hijackings, bumbings,
hostage-taking and assaults on diplomats.

21. In addition to condemning and prohibiting acts of terrorism, the Committee'
should make every effort to eliminate the conflicts and instabilities which had
provided the medium in which terrorism had grown. But those solutions were being
worked on and debated by other committees. They were the focus of many of the over
150 other items on the agenda of the General Assembly. The Sixth Co~ittee,

therefore, should concentrate on finding better ways to control and combat
terrorism.

22. His delegation agreed with the Sovie~ Union that there was a need for action
on the basis of common ayreement. While the United States was not inclined to
believe that there was a need to create new institutions or bodies, it was prepared
to consider the Soviet suggestions in the positive spirit in which they had been
made.

23. In conclusion, his delegation suggested that the Committee should reiterate
the universal condemnation of terrorism as acts which no cause could ever justifYI
call upon all Stdtes to UBe their political influence to secure the immediate and
safe release of all hostagesl call upon all States to fUlfil their obligations
under international law and to take effective and resolute measures for the speedy
and final elimination of international terrorism, taking to heart the statement of
the Canadian delegation on the importance of applying 6xisting conventions 1 and
call upon all States which were not parties to the conventions elaborated within
the United Nations system to consider becoming parties so that perpetrators of
terrorist acts would have no safe haven.

24. Mr. BEN-BArAEL (Israel) said that international terrorism was an issue of
grave concern to his nation, which had be~n victimized for years by internationally
linked terrorism. Yet Israel was by no means the only victim, for international
terrorism knew no geographical bounds and showed no sign of diminishing. The
mid-air bombinr, ~f a civilian United States aircraft in December 1988 and of a
civilian French aircraft in September 1989 were recent and chilling reminders of
that reality. Although on a different scale, the murder of the leader of the
Belgian Jewish community in Brussels in October 1989 was no less disturbing.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.e/44/SR.21
English
Page 8

(HLL aen-Rafael, Ilrael)

25. Meaningful international co-operation in the fight againt international
terrorism should focus on three areas. First, preventive security measures should
be strengthened and improved. Innovative technologies were urgently required to
anticipate and counter new and sophisticrted means of terror which were developing
at a rapid rate. Second, the conventional law enforcement framework should be
strengthened by closing the gaps which enabled terrorists to escape punishment.
Neither extortion nor the fear of extortion against a State holding a terrorist,
nor the sympathy of a State for t ••• aims of a terrorist group, should permit such
criminals to evade justice. Third, comprehensive action should be taken against
States which employed terror, whether directly or through the sponsorship of
terrorist groups. It was clear that without the financial and logistic support of
certain Sta~es and the provision of safe haven for terrorists, the danger of
international terrorism would be greatly reduced. Without State support it was
unlikely that terrorist actions such as the bombing of Pan American flight 103
could have been perpetrated.

2e. His delegation welcomed the adoption of the three important new instruments
concluded in the aviation and maritime fields during the two years since the
General Assembly had last taken up the item under consideration. Israel was a
signatory to each of those instruments and was proceeding towards their
ratification. Mention should also be made of two new and significant initiatives
introduced in international forums during the previous yrlar. The first was th~

joint initiative by Czechoslovakia and the United Kingdoln, undertaken following the
Pan American bombing, to promote a convention on the marking of explosives for
detectability. Hi. delegation welcomed that initiative, which had led to the
Security Council's unanimous adoption of resolution 635 (1989) and was greatly
encovraged by the work in progress in the appropriate ICAO committee and the
decision of the ICAO Assembly to convene a diplomatic conference in 1990 with a
view to concluding such a convention.

27. The second initiative, adopted 8S policy at the 44th Annual Conference of the
International Federation of Air Line Pilots' Associati04s (IFALPA), held at
Helsinki in April 1989, focused on situations in which a t.errorist, conv~~ted of
aviation terrorism, was pardoned or otherwise released pr~or to completing his term
of imprisonment as a consequence of further ~~ts of terror. The IFALPA policy
recommended to ICAO the inclusion of a provision in all international conventions
dealing with aviation terrorism which would enable States to nullify the effect of
the premature release or pardon if such had been obtained by a subsequent offence
referred to in one of the conventions. A person so released or pardoned would not
be entitled to plead double jeopardy should he again be brought to trial for the
original offence, nor to rely on a pardon or amnesty to terminate the continuation
of his prison sentence. The IFALPA recommendation was not intended to prejudice
legitimate use of the plea of double jeopardy, which was universally recognized and
vital to the rule of law, but rather to prevent misuse of the plea Whereby
convicted terrorists might evade justice, thus undermining the rule of law. Israel
supported the IFALPA recommendation, which by resolution of the ICAO Assembly had
been referred to th~ ICAO Council for consideration. The initiative was a
meaningful step towards bridging the gaps in international law enforcement and

/ ...Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.&/44/SR.2l
Encal1sh
Paqe 9

(Hr. Ben-Rafael. Ilra.l)

deserved careful study with a view to potential application in the case of acts of
terrorism outside the aviation field. The Sixth Committee could play an important
role in connection with those and other initiatives, both·in articulatinca Dorms and
in offering guidance to international bodies best equipped to develop practical and
lastin~ solutions to specific aspects of the problem.

28. Turning to the question of convening an international conference to define
terrorism and to differentiate it from the struggle of people. for national
liberation,. he said that while General Assembly resolution 40/61 had marked a
significant step forward in the international commitment to combat terrorism,
resolut.ion 42/159 had marked a regression, its unequivocal condemnation of
terrorism being linked to a thinly-veiled attempt to leqitimi.e acts of terror
under the pretext of national liberation. Such an attempt was an affront to the
universal right to self-determination and a disservice to those who sought to
exercise that right legitimately. His delegation believed that an international
conferftnce along the lines envisaged in resolution 42/159 could serve no positive
purpose and, in the absence of a common approach to a definition, could only lead
to division, diverting the international community's attention and energy from the
real task of substantive co-operation in the fight aqainst terrorism.

29. Mr. ALl (Democratic Yemen) said that the problem of terrorism, which affected
all States, must be addressed collectively if the underlying causes of terrorist
acts were to be eliminated. Agreement on a definition of terrorism was fundamental
to the achievement of a consensus on the phenomenon and would also help in the
process of identifying more effective ways to fight it. In that cont~xt, the
convening of an international conference to define terrorism and to differentiate
it from the struggle of peoples for national liberation would be of great benefit.

30. The two elements of the agenda item under consideration were closely linked.
The first (measures t~ prevent international terrorism), besides addressing
activities which endangered or took innocent human lives, should also cover
activities which infringed human rights, the right of peoples to self-determination
and their right to choose the path of their future development. The second element
(a stUdy of the underlying causes) was essential if terrorism was to be stamped out.

31. His country titrongly condemned acts of terrorism, whether carried out by
individuals, groups or States, and supported collective international efforts in
the framework of the United Nations and other intergovernmental organizations to
eliminate terrorism. It had acceded to a number of pertinent conventions,
including the Convention for the Suppression of Unlawful Seizure of Aircraft and
the Convention for the Suppression of Unlawful Acts against the Safety of Civil
Aviation, despite the omission of any reference to that effect in document
A/44/456, and expected to accede to a number of other related conventions in the
near ':uture.

32. His delegations concern at the substantial increase in acts of terrorism W~8

heightened by the continuing escalation of terrorism against the Palestinian people
in the occupied territories, as well as by the repression of the majority of South

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.6/44/SR.2l
English
Page 10

(Mr. Ali. DemQcratic Yemen)

Africa's populatiQn U! ~~r that country's aparthei~ regime. ThQse and Qther aspects
of terrQrism required closer attention and decisive actiQn on the part Qf the
internatiQna1 cQmmunity.

33. Mr. HAMPE (German DemQcratic Republic) said that grQwing agreement within the
internatiQna1 community cQncerning the need to intensify effQrts to cQmbat
terrorism was reflected in the internatiQnal instruments drafted and adQpted during
the two years which had elapsed since the issue had last been cQnsidered in the
Sixth CQmmittee. His cQuntry suppQrted those instruments, endorsed the relevant
passages of the concluding document Qf the Vienna meeting Qf the Conference Qn
Security and CQ-QperatiQn in EurQpe and we1cQmed Security CQuncil resQlutiQns
635 (1989) and 638 (1989) dealing with different aspects of the same issue.

34. His cQuntry's views were reflected in the letter addressed to the
Secretary-General by a number Qf sQcialist States (A/C.6/44/4) cQntaining,
in~alia, a number of suggestions aimed at making better use Qf the United
NatiQns potential. including the idea Qf setting up a fact-finding bQdy tQ deal
with acts Qf internatiQnal terrQrism. The existence Qf such a bQdy WQuld help tQ
prevent an escalation of frictiQn between States which Qccurred whenever countries
were unilaterally accused of participating in an act Qf international terr~rism.

The suggestion was in line with prQpQsal~ fQr further developing the fact-finding
capabilities Qf the United NatiQns. AnQther suggestiQn put forward in the letter
was that Qf examining the pQssibility of setting up, within the United NatiQns
Secretariat, a centr_ Qn prQb1ems Qf internatiQnal terrQrism. The letter also
suggested that consideration should be given to the pQssibi1ity Qf drafting a
convention on the physical prQtectiQn Qf chemical and bio1Qgica1 materials "
inter alia, against terrQrist acts - along the lines Qf the ConventiQn on the
Physical ProtectiQn of Nuclear Material, prepared within the framewQrk of the
International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA), which had entered into fQrce in 1987.
In that connectiQn. he wished to stress that co-operation in combating acts Qf
international terrorism should be encouraged abQve all by making full use of
existing legal instruments, and, if necessary, through the e1abQratiQn of new
ones. The joint prQposa1 by CzechQs1Qvakia and the United KingdQm fQr the
preparation of a new legal instrument regarding the marking of exp1Qsives for
detectability was a realistic Qne which could yield CQncrete results in a
fQreseeab1e future. It was tQ be hQped that IeAO would conduct its work on the
subject in a result-oriented manner. The marking of plastic explosives did nQt,
hQwever, affect the security Qf civil aviatiQn alQne. The prQb1em was an extremely
cQmplex one, and the drafting Q1 a comprehensive cQnventiQn on the matter might be
a suitable task fQr the Sixth Committee.

35. After listing the international agreements pertaining to the fight against
international terrorism to which his country was a party and describing recent
amendments to his country's Penal Code designed tQ establish a closer relationship
between national penal law and the protection of certain aspects of international
life, he had said that the struggle against international terrorism could only be
successful if the rQQt causes of the phenomenon were eradicated. His delegation
believed that conditions for improving co-operation among States tQ that end were
favourable. '

,
I •••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC.6/44/SR.21
English
Page 11

36. Mr. RAZMI (Afghanistan) said that the adoption of General Assembly resolution
42/159 had not been the first occasion on which the world community had revealed
its concern at international terrorism nor. the only time when it had urged all
States to fulfil their obligations under international law and to prevent the
preparation and organization in their territory. for commission within or outside
their territory. of terrorist acts and subversive acts directed against other
States and their citizens. In adopting the resolution. the General Assembly had
been well aware that international terrorism was in some cases encouraged by States
for political reasons. While condemning all acts and all forms of international
terrorism. wherever and by whomever committed. his Government fully shared the
General Assembly's justifiable COllcern. expressed in the samE resolution. with the
possibility of State involvement in terrorist acts. a concern with particular
relevance to Afghanistan. where "organizing. instigating. assisting or
participating in terrorist acts in other States. or acquiescing in activities
within their territory directed towards tt, commission of such acts" had become the
daily practice of some States. The inter~3tional community should do its utmost to
put an end to that form of international terrorism. as indeed to all other cruel
acts of terrorism whether committed by individuals or by groups. That could be
achieved if all States fulfilled their international obligations and gave
overriding priority to combating terrorism.

37. His Government shared the view that the problem of international terrorism
could be resolved by eradicating its underlying causes. and considered that the
convening. under t~e auspices of the United Nations. of an international conference
to define terrorism and to differentiate it from the struggle of peoples for
national liberation could represent an appropriate step in that direction.

38. Mr. HUNJA (Kenya) reaffirmed his country's unreserved condemnation of all
forms of terrorism. Terrorists. wherever they existed. must be hunted down and
offered no safe haven. However. most acts of terrorism resulted from the
frustration of certain political aspirations. Attempts to stamp out international
terrorism would therefore never be fully successful if there was no concomitant
attempt to remove the underlying causes. The adoption of a large nur-mer of
international conventions against various forms of terrorism and the general
acceptance of such conventions were highly commendable. That notwithstanding. most
of the conventions in question dealt with specific acts of terrorism and
constituted reactions to a certain terrorist act. Furthermore. despite the
existence of the relevant conventions. international terrorism did not appear to be
on the wane.

39. Kenya had been one of the first countries in Africa to take up arms in order
to achieve independence and self-determination. and its freedom fighters had been
labelled terrorists and punished as common criminals. Kenya had never believed
that they were terrorists. A parallel situation currently existed in South Africa.
where the illegal racist regime practised State terrorism against its neighbours
with impunity. and where freedom fighters WF -e labelled terrorists. Since such a
definition was unacceptable. Kenya believei that an international conference to
consider such contradictions would be useful.

I. ,. •

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.&/44/SR.2l
English
Page 12

40. Mr. ALZATE (Colombia) said that consideration of the issue of terrorilm must
reveal the mercile•• reality in many countries. In oon.idering the acta and
situations in question, the members of the Committee must appreciate the anguish
and violence to which terrorism gave rise, while r.affirming their rejection of
terrorism, which must be translated into appropriate concerted action. The
necessary political will on the part of States was therefore an element of prime
importance.

41. International ~evelopments over the past few years had .hown that, in addition
to adopting legal r.IGasures to prevent terrori.m in their own territorie., the
members of the international community must endeavour to develop practical forms of
co-operation, beginning with a conference to harmoni.e principle., to stres. the
international re.ponsibility of States, and to place empha.i. on dome.tic control
of factors that promoted violence in the territories of other States, including the
means of transport by air, land or sea used for that purpose. Terrori.m must be
condemned in all its forms, and those who promoted terrorism and provided
leadflrBhip or instrLct.!on in that connection must also be condemned.

42. Colombia was being taken by assault by terrorism, and innocent individuals
were dying day after day. In a struggle unprecedented in Colombia's history, the
Colombian authorities were stepping up their efforts to track down those
responsible. However, weapons and those who trained the terrorists came from a
number of countries where insufficient action was being taken to contribute to
world peace. The struggle against narco-terrorism being waged by Colombia had
become more intense I in the mean time, mercenaries from countries that wer~

benafiting from Colombia's struggle against drugs were furthering their
acquaintance with violence, and shipments of weapons and ammunition wez'e being
made.

43. Colombia had ratified a whole range of multilateral and bilateral instruments
to prevent and punish acts of terrorism, and was also a party to a number of
bilateral agreoments on extradition that covered the acts of terrorism dealt with
in the Colombian Criminal Code and in Colombian laws. Furthermore, Colombia ~as

considering becoming a party to the Protocol for the Suppression of Unlawful Acts
oC Violence at Airports serving International Civil Aviation in the near future.

44. There was no place for terrorism in a civilised world, even in cases where its
underlying causes were political. The right of peoples to fight oppression must be
realized by means that did not indiscriminately endanger the popUlation of any
given country. Similarly, it was irresponsible to attribute responsibility to
liberation movements for acts not carried out by th,m. The international community
must take a cautious approach in defining international terrorism, and must delimit
clearly each individual activity. Furthermore, acts of terrorism perpetrated by
organized criminals to achieve their ends must be rejected.

45. As a member of the Security Council, Colombia had supported Security Council
resolution 635 (1989), which, inter alia, urged ICAO to intensify its work on
devising an international regime for the marking of plastic or sheet explosives for
the purpose of detection. It had also condemned all acts of terrorism at the

I • ••
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.6/44/SR.21
I!lDlirlllh
Palire 13

(Hr. AI,at•• Colombia)

rec.nt Summit Meetin9 of Heads of State or Gov.rnment of Non-Alilirned Countries. At
that summit me.tinlir, it had been alirreed that particular attention should be devoted
to the link' between terrorist groups and drulir traffickers and their paramilitary
9anlirs. Colombia's policy on such matters took a practical form, and ~he entire
country h&~ ri~.n up against terrorism. However, its resiltance to terrorilm would
be insufficient., because there "ere external factorl that mUlt be taken into
account I those rl~o sold weapons to narco-terrorists were even more responsible than
drulir addicts t~~m~el~es for the violence enlirendered by ~rulirs. The international
community must thwrefore ensure that that deadly trade was ended.

46. Hr. MATAIRA (New Zealand) said that his deleliration supported the sUlirqestion
made by the Leliral Counsel that the Secretary-General's report should contJnue to
contain an annex on the state of signatures of, and ratifications of or accessions
to international conventions relating to various aspects of the problem of
international terrorism.

47. The illegal use of force by one State against another had been outlawed by the
United Nations Charter. Internation~l terrorism could be just as disruptive of
inter-State relations as State violence and must be just as stronlirly condemn.~. It
presented a direct threat to innocent human lives, and the consequence of that
threat was a climate of fear from which no one wa. immune. New Zealand wished to
reaffirm its Deputy Prime Minister's denunciation of terrorism in 1985. Terrorism
in all its form~ must be eliminated. No cau.e, however just, and no liroal, however
worthy, could justify the terrorist in taking or risking the lives of innocent
people. International law pstablished a clear rule that even in time of war 1t was
11legal and inhuman for combatants deliberately or recklessly to use force against
a civilian population. It was obvious that what was relirarded as unacceptable
conduct in time of war was all the more outralireous if perpetrated against the
civilian population in time of p~ace. International terrorism had become a
many-h*aded monster, and both commitment and co-operation were needed if it was to
be curbed.

48. The consensus attained on General Assembly resolution 40/61 had been a major
endorsement of the judgement that international terrorism could not be justified.
The condemnation of terrorism in that resolution had sent a clear silirnal to anyone
inval/ed in th~ export of such violence, and was another important step taken by
the United Nations to reaffirm faith in the dignity and worth of the human person.
General Assembly resolution 42/159 had again reaffirmed that faith.

49. The international community had shown itself capable in the past ~f responding
appropriately to threats to international order. For example, the great majority
of countries had moved swiftly to become parties to the 1970 Hague Convention and
the 1971 Montreal Convention (and the earlier Tokyo Convention) in order to help to
ensure that hijackers were brought to justice. When international terrorism had
re-emerged in other form$, the international community had again responded with
co-operation at the practical level, in the form of the 1973 Conv~ntion on the
Prevention and Punishment of Crimes against Internationally Protected Persons,
including Diplomatic Agents, and the International Convention of 1979 against the

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.6/44/SR.21
Enqlhh
Paqe 14

(Mr. Mataira. Htw Zealand)

Takinq of Hostages. Full compliance with thole convention. was essential to
discnurage terrorilt acts.

so. Ntw Zealand wal a party to all five of the convention, lilted in the annex to
the Secretary-General's report. It was pleased to note the large number of recent
ratificationl of the conventions, and hoped tha~ other Government. that had not yet
become party to the conventions would do 10 in the near future. Although work
remained to be done to fill the gapI left by the exilting conventions, New Zealand
was pleased to note the recent progresl by ICAO, IMO and other organilations, as
indicated in t~e Secretary-General's report, and wholeheartedly supported the
initiatives in question. The measures formulated to date to combat terrorism
demonstrated that there were steps that could be taken that did not require a
precise and comprehenlive definition of terrorism. But that was not to say that
such a definition, in the context of a comprehensive convention, would not be an
important step.

51. New Zealand continued to support the deve1~pment of a comprehensive approach
to international terrorism. Until such time as an international consensus on wider
concerted action developed, the member. of the international community must
increase their effortl domestically, and also through co-operation at the global
and reqional levels, to strengthen their adherence to the conventions and measures
already in place and to develop them. The ongoing work to fill the gaps left by
the existinq conventions on particular types of terrorist action would also need to
continue. No area of the world could afford to consider itself excluded from the
threat of terrorism. Increased co-operation nn anti-terrorist measure. had taken
place in recent years amongst States members of the South Pacific Forum. New
Zealand stronq1y urgeo all countries to pursue similar regional initiatives.

52. Mr. ROJAUAPHRUK (Thailand) said that the fight to eliminate international
terrorism required effective co-operation by the international community. His
Government firmly sup~orted internetional efforts to combat terrorism in accordance
with established principles of inteo'nationa1 law. It welcomed the efforts
undertaken by ICAO to promote universal compliance with international air-security
conventions, to which it was a party. His country was also considering becoming a
party to other relevant multilateral aqreements. Thailand took seriously its
obligation to combat intsrnationa1 terrorisml those responsible for the recent
hijacking of a Myanmar domesUc a!rcraft, which had been forced to land in
Thailand, were being tried under Thai domestic law enacted in accordance with the
provisions of the aforementioned international civil aviation conventions.

53. In order to combat internation~l terrorism ~ffective~y, it was necessary to
ensur6 that existing enforcement measures were utilized to the fullest extent and
that the principle of prosecuting or extraditing international terrorists was
strictly observed. States must co-operate in th, apprehension and prosecution or
extradition of perpetrators of terrorist acts and exchange relevant information
concerning the prevention of terrorism.

I •••
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/'::.6/44/SI.2l
Ilnqlllh
'aqe 15

54. Mr. BADAWI (Egypt) laid that the effortl of the United Nationl and its
specialized agencie. to combat terrori.m de.erved the full lupport of the
international community. Hil Government had acceded to all the pertinent
international conventions and had taken the initiative, toqether with AUltria and
Italy, in ratifying the Convention for the Suppreslion of Unlawful Actl aqainst the
Safety of Maritime Navigation. It had allo welcomed Security Council re.olution
635 (1989), which urged ICAO to devise a legal inltrument re~ardinq the marking of
plastic or sheet explo.ives. Other Member States could contribute .iqnificantly to
action against terrorists and their supporter. by acceding to such conventions and
fully complying with their related obligations.

55. At a time when the concept of interdependence was winning ever greater
recognition, there was a need for extended internatioual co-operation again.t
terrorism. Paragraph 5 of General Assembly resolution 42/159 outlined the
obligations of Statel in that relpect, while paragraph 8 of the lame re.olution
urged them to contribute to the progressive elimination of the cau.e. underlying
international terrorism. Special attention to the .ituation. de.cribed in that
paragraph was essential if violence and counter-violence were to be eradicated.
Some might interpret paragraph 14 of the relolution a. a means of condoning
terrorism as a struggle for a specific cau.e. However, the leqitimate Itruggle of
peoples - as recognized in international law - for .elf-determination or against
foreign occupation should not be confused with deliberate criminal action against
innocent civilians. On the other hand, if it wal true that innocent civilian. ha~

fundamental rights and freedoms which must be respected, the international
community must recognize that peoples living under foreign occupation, colonial
domination and racist regimes had similar rights.

56. His Government was continuing to urge that international co-operation against
terrorism be intensified. However, such co-operation would be of no avail in the
absence of a consensus and a readiness on the part of all Member States to engage
in collective action. A serious and frank dialogue between all State. and
geographical groups was required, with a view to achieving consensus in both the
leg81 and the political senle.. While in agreement with much of draft resolution
A/C.6/44/L.2, his delegation felt that the omission of a number of paragraph~ Which
had been included in previous General Assembly relolutionl on that subject might
affect it adversely. The non-aligned countries would be addressing those
shortcomings, and it was to be hoped that prompt negotiations among all
geographical groups would result in the consenSUI adoption of a universally
acceptable text.

57. Mr. BLANC (France), speaking on behalf of the 12 States members of the
European Ccmmunit]·, said that terrorism was a universal scourge from which no State
was safe, as the Twelve knew from bitter experience. The Twelve 101emn1y
reaffirmed their condemnation of terrorism in all its forms. No cause, however
legitimate, could justify the use of violence and terror. Terrorism not only
threatened the safety of individuals, but also jeopardized friendly relations among
States and therefnr~ endangered international Atabi1ity. Recent terrorist attacks,
especially those involving airliners, were a reminder of the urgent need for States
to unite and stand firm against the danger.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C. 6/U/SR. 21
English
Page 16

(Hr. Blanc. Franc.)

58. The States members of the European Community reaffirmed their support for
General Assembly resolutions 40/ft1 and 42/159 and Security Council resolution
579 (1989), which had marked an i~portant stage in the international response to
terrorism and paved the way for constructive and practical co-operation between
States in fighting terrorism. Each State mUlt refuse to support or provide refuge
for factions or movements likely to rerort to terror and adapt its domestic legal
arsenal to the requirements of a struggle which usually extended beyond national
boundaries and legal systems. A stricter application of the "extradition or
prosecution" principle, combined with improved procedures for international
judicial co-operation, would make it easier to hunt down criminals involved in
terrorist acts. In the area of prevention, effective airport controls were
essential for the safety of civil aviation.

59. The Twelve appealed to all States which had not yet done su to consider
becoming party to the international conventions relating to various aspects of
international terrorism referred to in General Assembly resolution 42/159.
Furthermore all States, once they became parties to those conventions, must t,ke
the necessary measures to apply them within their territories.

60. The Twelve were convinced that the best way to combat terrorism was to take an
approach which avoided generalities and focused on specific terrorist acts. Such a
pragmatic approach had proved effective in the past. In the past two years, three
new legal instruments elaborated by ICAO and IMO had provided States with specific
means of fighting terrorism. The work undertaken by rCAO on devising an
international regime for the marking of plastic or sheet explosives for the purpose
of detection also deserved attention.

61. On the other hand, any approach lik~ly to result in protracted, abstract
discussions should be avoided. In that connection, the Twelve reaffirmed their
opposition to the convening of the international conference referred to in
paragraph 12 of General Assembly resolut~on 42/159, which could undo the progress
already achieved with regard to international co-operation against terrorism. Such
an exercise would only perpetuate the false idea that there was a link between
terrorism and the exercise of the right to self-determination. The views of the
Twelve were reflected to 8 large extent in draft resolution A/C.6/44/L.2, of which
all the States members of the European Community were sponsors.

62. MJ·L.~ (India) sdd that his country viewed the continuing inddence of
terrorism around the world, inclUding assassinations, kidnappings and hijackings,
with a deep concern reflected in the number of initiatives which it had undertaken
at the regional and international levels. It was at his country's initiative that
a chapter on terrorism had been included in the declaration adopted by the Meeting
of the Co-ordinating Bureau of the Movement of Non-Aligned Countries held at New
Delhi in 1986. India had also played an important role in the drafting of General
Assembly resolution 42/159, which had been adopted by consensus. His country was a
party to the international conventions relating to various aspects of international
terrorism and had participated in the negotiations on the draft convention relating
to maritime safety under the auspices of IMO. It had also been among the member

I . ••
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.&/44/SR.21
English
Page 17

(Mr. Gill. India)

States of the South-Asian Alsociation of Regional Co-operation which had signed a
Convention on the Suppression of Terrorism. A~ the bilateral level, India had
entered int~ extradition agreements with a number of countries to facilitate the
extradition and prosecution of fugitive offenders alleged to have committed acts of
terrorism. Domestically, it had enacted le~islation outlawing terrorist acts.

63. His Government firmly believed that if terrorism was to be completely
eradicated, it was essential to a~~tess its underlying cau.es. If violence was to
be curtailed or eliminated, the aMpirationl of peoples struggl!ng for freedom must
be fulfilled, as it was precisely against such people that violence was frequently
directed. Accordingly, he supported the establishment of a definition of terrorism
as referred to in General Assembly resolution 42/159.

64. Acts carried out with a view to undermining the political or territorial
sovereignty of States were also ter.rorist acts from which ~ll States had a
responsibility to refrain. The activities of mercenaries an~ those &cts which came
under the rubric of State terrorism were no less serious than t~rrorist acts
against individuals. His country was participating in the negotiations on the
drafting of an international convention against the recruitment, use, financing and
training of mercenaries.

65. His country believed that co-operation among the memJer States of the United
Nations was a key element in combating the growth of international terrorism. Such
co-operatio~ could take the following formsl States which ha~ nvt yet done so
should become parties to the international conventions relating to various aspects
of international t~rrorism and should implement them through appropriate domestic
legislationl terrorists should be subject to severe penaltiosl States should take
note of the growing menace of "narco-terror1sm" and consider appropriate measutes
to combat itl States should refrain from acts of terrorism and should not sponsor
or support such actsl acts of terrorism should not be treated as political
offencesl and judicial co-operation between States should be ~trengthened so that
terrorists could be brought to account al soon as possible. The principles of
peaceful coexistence, non-i.ltervention and non-interference ~y States in the
affairs of other States must be recognized and upheld in practice as part of the
effort to eradicate terrorism.

66. Mr. THEUAMBOUNMY (Lao People's Democratic RepUblic) said that his country
shared the concerns of the international community with regard to the criminal
phenomenon of international terro~ism. Senseless acts of terrorism not only
endangered innocent human lives but also destabilized international relations and
were likely to create new hotbeds of tension at the regional and global levels.

67. His delegation welcomed General Assembly resolutions 40/61 and 42/159 and
firmly supported the efforts made to date by the United Nations and the specialized
agencies in the co-ordination of measures to prevent allJ combat international
terrorism. In the same spirit, it welcomed the recent adoption of new legal
instruments by ICAO and IMO. It also supported the proposal made by the group of
socialist countries for the creation of a fact-finding body within the United
Nations Secretariat to deal with acts of international terrorism.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.6/44/SR.21
English
Page 18

(Mr. Theuambounmy. Lao Peaple's
Qemocratic Republic)

68. His country favoured the proposal for the convening of an i~ternational

conference under the terms of General Assembly r_s~lution 42/159. Such a conference
could have positive results only if all Members of the Organization participated in
it and reachld a consensus. That would be difficult, however, for certain countries
were openly attempting to equate national liberation movements with terrorism.

69. His Government, like the rest of the internfttional community, recognized and
respected the legitimacy of the struqgle of peoples for the exercise of their
inalienable rights to self-determination and independence. It unwaveringly
condemned all those who, under the pretext of fighting international terrorism,
resorted to violent and illegal means which jeopardi.ed the sovereignty and
territorial integrity of other States. Measures to prevent and eliminate
international terrorism must be taken in accordance with the principles of
international law and the Charter of the United Nations.

70. Mr. SALLAM (Yemen) said that the Y~rld must, while dealing decisively with
international terrorism, respect the right of peoples to self-determination and
their right to resist occupation, tyranny and racial discrimination by all means,
including armed struggle. Examples of Icrael's official terrorism - including its
continued occupation of Arab territories, repeated acts of aggression against Arab
States, arbitrary action against the heroes of the Palestinian uprising, further
development of its military and nuclear capabilities, continued refusal to adhere
to the Treaty on the Non-Proliferation of Nuclear Weapons and persistence in
testing intermediate-range missiles - constituted the most dangerous and
disgraceful manifestations of terrorism not only in the Middle East but in the
world as a whole.

71. His country's participation in the work of the Ad HQC Commi~tee on
International Terrorism and accession to the pertinent international conventions
were proof of its vigorous interest in the SUbject. It considered acts of
terrOfism to be immoral and could not subscribe to the theory whereby the ends
justified the means.

72. Mr. TOLENTINQ (Philippines) said that terrorism was a potential threat to all
countries, either directly or indirectly. Victims of terrorist activities were not
limited to individuals, but extended to the international community as a whole,
particularly when relations between States were severed as a result of such
activities. The Philippines shared che growing concern at the alarming increase in
international terrorism and at the results achieved thus far in combating that
scourge. No cause or objective could ever justify tefrorism, which was an assault
on the most fundamental of human rights - the right to live. Perpetrators claimed
responsibility for acts of terrorism which were often tolerated, supported or even
induced by States, which, as SUbjects ot international law, were as guilty as the
principals. Terrorism was a threat to the foundation laid for a whole series of
generally accepted principles of international law. A climate of security muat
therefore be created in the world in ordar to reetore faith in the ability of
Governments to give effect to the principles of international law in question.

I • ••
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.6/44/SR.21
English
Page 19

(Mr. TolentinQ, Philippines)

73. The Philippine GQvernment periodically considered the implementation of a
numher of relevant interr.ntional instruments in order to ensure that they were
enforced in the Philippir.es. States mu~t f\11fil their obligations under the
instruments in qua~~ion by taking apprQpriate preventive and punitive measures at
the national le~el. States that had not yet done so were repeatedly called upQn to
become party to the existing international instr\~ents, However, the moral
commitment and det';L"minati,1n of each State to honour the principles of peace and
security were perhaps eqbally important. In that connection, he wished to refer to
General Assembly Lesolut.ion 40/61 and to the relevant Security Council
resolutions. The trend for combating international terrorism was set, and the
members Qf the interAat~unnl cQmmunity had agreed in substance. They must now
agree on effective melhodology. One important measure that called for a concerted
effort on the paLL of the international community was the denial of a safe haven
for terrorists. The Philippines valued the fundamental obligation set forth in
most international inslLllinents to extradite or prosecute terrorists, and it was
willing to co-operate iu every way to hasten the acceptance of that concept as a
norm of international law.

74. The Philippines saw no contradiction between combating terrorism, on the one
hand, and supporling a people's right to self-determination, freedom and
independence, on the other. It had not forgotten its own struggle for independence
and recognized the ihalienable right of all peoples under colonial dominatiQn, a
racist regime, or any other form of foreign domination to self-determination and
independence. With regard to the proposal that an international conference to
define terrorism should be convened, the Philippines shared the view that general
agreement should be reached on the basis on which such a conference should be held.

75. Mr. KOZUBEK (Czechoslovakia) said that international terrorism was
inadmissible in all forms and manifestations, no matter where, by whom and under
what pretexts terrorist acts were committed. Czechoslovakia was in favour of broad
international co-operation with a view to elaborating effective ways of combating
terrorism. A prerequisite for such co-operation was that as many States as
possible should support the relevant international conventions. Czechoslovakia was
a party to a whole series ot relevant international conventions, and internal s~eps

were being taken with a view to ratifying the Protocol for the Suppression of
Unlawful Acts of violence at Airports Serving International Civil Aviation, the
Convention for the Suppression of Unlawful Acts against the Safety of Maritime
Navigation, and the Protocol for the Suppression of Unlawful Acts against the
Safety of Fixed ~latforms located on the Continental Shelf. Czechoslovakia's newly
assumed international obligations would be duly reflected in its domestic
legislation.

76, Even the best provlSlons of international treaties were ineffective unless
they were accompanied by a sincere political will to implement them. A selective
approach to the suppression of terrorist acts was unacceptahle. Quite recently
Czechoslovakia had witnessed such an approach on the part of one of its neighbours,
which had shown leniency towards the hijackers of a civil aircraft and refused
Czechoslovakia's request for their extradition.

I •••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC.6/44/SR.2l
English
Page 20

(Mr. Kozubek. Czechoslovakia)

77. As indicated in the letter dated 15 June 1989 from the Permanent
Hepresentatives of Czechoslovakia and the United Kingdoln addressed to the
Secretary-General (A/44/328), one of the ways of preventing terrorist acts was to
limit the possibilities for terrorist groups and individual terrorists to obtain
instrwnents for their dangerous activities. A contribution in that direction had
been the joint proposal of CzechoslovaKia and the United Kingdom to work out an
international convention on Lhe marking of plastic and S!leet explosives for
detection purposes. It was urgent to come to grips with that issue. The idea in
question had won the support of the Secur'ity Council, as expu:!ssed in resolutioll
635 (1989j, and many States had made positive comments in that connection.
Czechoslovakia appreciated the work carried out by lCAO, which had created optimal
conditions for the elaboration and adoption of a convention on the SUbject in the
near future. In addition to marking, such a convention should ban exports and
imports of unmarked explosives and make it a duty of States to seize any unmarked
explosives found. If such a convenciou was to be effective, all States producing
plastic and sheet explosives must become a party to it. Moreover, the General
Assembly and the Sixth Committee should play a role in the conclusion and speedy
implementation of the convention, and Member States should therefore consider what
that t-ole might be.

78. Specific proposals concerning the potential of the United Nations regarding
efforts to eliminate international terrorism were set forth in the letter from the
Permanent Representatives of six Eastern European countries addressed to the
Secretary-General (A/C.6/44/4). Furthermore, in accordance with General Assembly
resolution 42/159, paragraph 8, Czechoslovakia supported efforts to remove the
causes of international terrorism. Lastly, with regard to the proposal that an
int~rnatioIlal conference should be convened, Czechoslovakia believed that there
should be an exchange of views on how useful such a for'wn might be, provided that
all proposalS concerning specific measures against international terrorism put
forward at the current session were considered, and provided that consensus was
reached on the agenda for such a conference.

:rhe meeting rose at 1 p.m.

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library




